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Bomet University College

Reports and Financial Stalements
For the yvear ended June 30, 20018

II.  KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
ia) Background information

Bomet University College (Bomet Umiversity College) was established as a constituent college of
Moi University through the Legal Notice No. 145 published in the Kenya Gazette Supplement
No.114 of 27th July, 2017. The management of the University College is headed by the Principal
with assistance of two Deputy Principals in Administration and Finance (A&F) and Academic and
Student Affairs (AKSA) respectively. The management of the University College reporis to the
Bomet University College Council that was maugurated on 10™ November 2017, The University
College Council reports 1o the Swate Department of University Education while at the Cabinet level,
the University College 15 represented by the Cabinet Secreiary for Education, Science and
Technology whao is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the University.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal activity of the University is to provide university education through teaching, research
and owtreach.

The visien, mission and core values of the University are as follows:

Vision
To be a premier Green Umversity in fostering research excellence in Science, Technology and
Innowation for sustainability.

Missinn

To provide a conducive environment for discovery, preservation and dissemination of knowledge; 1o
nurture critical inguiry, creativity and engagement for social transformation and advancement of
humanity.

Core Values:

Bomet University College 15 a community built upon the valued relationships among students, staff.
taculty. alumni and other stakeholders. At the core of these relationships are our core values that lead
to the realization of our corporate culture and good govemnance. These are:

{i} Integrity: Consistency in service delivery through adherence to highest ethical standards.

{ii) Patriotism: To render selfless services and unwavering commitment to the University,

(i1} Transparency and Accountability: To maintain a culture of openness, faimess, equity, and
assume and demonstrate responsibility over our individual and collective actions.

{iv) Respect: For diversity and the dignity of the individual, as well as antaching a premium 1o the
contributions of each and every plaver regardless of one’s status in the University.

{v} Commitment: To continuously improve on the quality of the services offered with the goal

of assuring longevity and excellence of the University.
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{a) hey Management
Bomet University College day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
= University College Council
- College Principal
- Bomet University College Management
- Deans of Schools

{h) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial vear ended 30" June
201 8 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

N, Designation ' Name
Mai University Management
' 1. | Acting Vice Chancellor Prof. Laban P. Ayiro
2. | Acting DVC — Finance Prof. Daniel K, Tarus
3. | DVC-Academics, Research and Extension | Prof lsanc Kimengi
DVC-Students Affairs & Acting DVC- EAg .
4 jath
Admimstration and Planning , -
B 3 | Acting Finance Officer | C.P.A George K. Aduda
Bomet University College Management
6 | Acting College Principal | Prof. Thomas K. Cheruivot
Acting Deputy Principal- Administration . :
7 sl Fiiimron pa | Prof. Loice Chempgetich Maru
8 Acting Deputy Principal- Academic and Prof, Joshuia Kworyike

| Student Affairs

Notes to Fiduciary Management:

Funds relating to Bomet University College from the National Treasury were channelled through Moi
University up to February 2018 and most of the transactions relating to Finance and Procurement
were processed in Mot University. Bomet University College Council was appointed and inaugurated
on 10" November 2017, The current acting College Principal was appointed on 10" October 2017
while the two acting deputy Principals were appointed on 9th November 2017, The University
College was subsequently handed over by Moi University Council on 29™ March 2018. Financial
reconcihations were done and formed pant of the handover report.
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i) Fiduociary Oversight Arrangemenis

The University College Council provides fiduciary oversight on the financial operations of the
University College through the Finance, Administration. Strategy. Building and Development
Committee; Audit and Compliance Committee, Academic, Research, Extension. Students Affairs and
Sealing Comminee: Human Resource, Governance and Staff’ Disciplinary Committee.

The Finance. Administration, Strategy. Building and Development Committee reviews the Liniversaty
Quarterly Financial Statements before they are submitted 1o full council and subsequently 1o the
Ministry of Education and National Treasury by the 15" day of the month preceding end of quarter.

The Audit and Compliance Committee provides oversight on Bomet University College financial
statements by supporting the Internal Audit Unit in providing oversight on the intermal controls and
the maintenance of proper accounting records.

The Office of the Auditor General conducts annual nudit of the operations of the University, The
reports of the Auditor CGeneral are submitted to the National Assembly through the Public
Investments Committee (P.1.C), which provides the overall fiduciary oversight on the operations of
the Uiniversity College.

Financial reports, Regular and Ad-hoc andits will be provided to development partners who will
provide funds to the University College. This is to ensure financial probity on the utilization of funds
in Bomet Uiniversity College.

{d) Headguarters
Head Office
Bomet University College
PO, Box 701-20-400:0
Bomet Town, KENYA

(¢} University Contacts

Telephone :( 254} 74666926/ 74666523
E-mail: principal @buc.ac ke
Website: www.Bomet University College.ac.ke

() University Bankers

. National Bank of Kenva
Bomet Branch
P.0O Box 539-20400)
Bomet. Kenva

|-

Kenva Commercial Bank
Bomet Branch

P.O Box 264-20400
Bomel, kenya
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Co-Operative Bank
Bomet Branch
PO Box 501-2044K)
Bomet. Kenva

{g) Independent Auditors

Office Auditor General

Kenva National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way
.0 Box 30084

COP 00100

Mairobi. Kenva

{h) Principal Legal Adviser

The Atorney General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.0. Box 40112 City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenva
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(. MEMBERS OF THE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE COUNCIL

" Members of Bomet I..il'li'ﬁ-'l'!r.';ll:w Caollege

Coincil ! Key Qualifications

Holder of Doctorate

In Education ( Adult Education).

Prof. Esther W Muchira is a consultant,
Re-searcher. educator and trainer,

Recently the Vice Chancellor of

Cavedish University in Uganda and

Currently Education Consultant and

} N Executive Secretary of Linking Industry With

d 1 s .
Prof. Esther W Muchira Tirima Acuademia (LIWA)
Chairperson of Bomet University

College Council
Appointed on gt September 2017

Phi-Strategic Management (Mo ),

M5, Management Studies { Wagening
L'miversity ).

AGBM (Egerton University),

Professor of Corporate Social Responsibility,
SUh[uirmhilil}- and Strategy al Mot University,

Prof. Thomas Kimeli Cheruivor
Ag. Principal and Secretary 1o Council.

Holder of PhD from Drew University
and currently the Bishop of Africa
Gospel Church, Kenva. He is the
Chayrman of the Appeals Committee of
Council.

Bishop (Rev) Dr. Robert Kipkemoi
Lang’at
Conncil Member
Appointed on fﬂ-'"_f:.'gp[:_"_ru_lj_l_:'{ 2017
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| PhDD in Veterinary Epidemiology

[ and Public Health. He was the Director

| of Veterinary Services (CVO) and OIE

| delegate and currently Veterinary Consultant
Including lecturing, He is the Chairman of
Human Resouree, Governanee and Siaff
Dhsciplinary Commuttee of Council.

Iyr. Peter Maina Ithondeka
Couwrcil Member
| Appointed on 29" September 2017

PhD in Education (Policy and Implementation)
She chairs the Audit and Compliance
Committee of Council

D, Jane Ngarari
Council Member
Appointed on 26" September 2017

|

| Masters in Educational Planning

| and Management with long experience in

| ieaching and educational management

| Positions in the government, Currently

| pursuing PhD in Education in Emergency
and Management. He is the Chairman of
Academic, Research. Extension, Students
Affairs and Sealing Committee of Council,

Mr. Alex Tom Majani
Cawmeil Member
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Holder of PRD in Environmental Technology
with a strong background in Energy
Development, Urban and Regional Planning
Currently the Government of Kenva Advisor
O Satural Resources Revenue, He is the
Chalrman of Finance. Admimsiraiion, Sirategy,
Building and Development Committee of

Couneil

Dr. Peter Amenyva Nyakundi
Cauncil Member
Appointed on 29" September 2017

Representing Principal Secretary of National
I reasury,

F.A. Susan Karanja
{ ngmet! Member
Appointed on 16" April 2018

Representative of the Principal Secretary-
Minstry of Education Science and Technology
(MOEST)

Mpr. Charles 0. Nvakundi
Connctl Member

Apponited on 4™ June 2018
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Name of the Staff Oualifications

PhD-Strategic Management (Maoi),

MSC. Management Studies (Wagening
Liniversity),

AGEM (Egerton Liniversity).

Prolessor of Corporate Social Responsibility,
Sustainability and Strategy at Moi University.

Prof. Thomas Kimeli Cheruivot
Ag. Principal and Secretary to Council.
Appointed on 16" Oetober 2017

PhD -Strategic Management (Mol University).
MPhil - Entrepreneurship Development ( Mai
University ), BBM-HRM (Moi University ),
HNID - Entrepreneurship Development (KTTC ),
Diploma - Technical Education (KTTC)
Professor of Entrepreneurship and

Fs
: Sustaimability Management at Moi University.

= &
| Frof. Loice Chemgetich Maru
Ag. Deputy Principal- Administration and
Fimance,
Appainted on 1™ November 2017

Phl) - Customary Law (University of West of
England - U K)

Master of Intemnational Law (Kiev State
University - KSU'y, PGD in Personnel
Management - (Kiev State University),
Certificate in Pedagogy (KIEV).

Associate Professor of Socio - Legal
Development at Moi Uiniversity,

Prof. Joshua H:'nn}'ike
Ag. Deputy Principal- Academiec and Student
Affairs
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRPERSON OF COUNCIL

| am pleased w0 present the first Financial
Stmements  for Bomet University College
following inauguration of its Council on 10"
November 2017.

Bomet University College aspires wo be a Premier
Green  University in fostering  Research
Excellence in Science, Technology and
Innovation for advancement of humanity. The
University College ensures that policies,

processes and sirategies are aligned in order to realise this vision as well as ensuring that the
University College attains world class competitiveness. It is in this move that Bomet University
College has developed the Master Plan and the Strategic Plan that will guide the University College
m financial planning. development of academic programs, process efficiency, stakeholder
engagement and overall infrastructure development.

The Strategic Plan covers the period 2018 to 2023 and it is founded on green philosophy as it
endeavors 10 join the few green universities globally. The ultimate goal of this philosophy is
sustainability for humanity. This green philosophy thar drives Bomet University College is based on
principles of renewable energy. efficiency in design. water conservation, waste reduction and
recyeling. indoor air control, durability, merging of green environmert among others. These
principles are in line with the University's green orientation as a center of applied science.
technology and innovation. The Strategic Plan envisions a teaching and leaming environment that
blends well with the natural and physical environment including the industry in order 10 meet the
demands and expectations of all stakeholders. Equally. this Strategic Plan aligns the stated strategic
goals 1o the University College’s Vision. Mission. Core Values and the Philosophy, The Strategic
Plan symbolizes values that will make our University College students great global citizens and
change their perspectives forcver,

Bomet University College Master Mlan has been developed to cover the period 2018 1o 2068 (30
years) and i consistent with the Strategic Plan. The Master Plan will provide a coordinating strategy
for & conducive teaching and leaming environment. The Plan represents a framework for a
development process in which the whole will always be more than the sum of its parts. The Master
Plan is a product and & process since it achicves continuity bevond a single building and encourages
orderly Campus development within available resources. The Master Plan focuses on strategies 1o
create accessible, inclusive and highly efficient utilization of space to create ambiance. Our own
innovation of a solar farm, innovation Centre, mini industrial park, organic form and a guest house
for research, training and accommodation will go a long way in making Bomet University College a
green sustainable Institution.

Bomet University College is currently undertaking construction of Tuition Block. Library Complex,
Multipurpose Hall and Student Hostels (two) at a total cost of Kshs.1.3 billion financed by Capital
Development grant from the Government of Kenya. We expect that once the projects are completed,
the University College can enroll more students.
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During the vear 2017, Prof. Thomas Kimeli Cheruiyot was appointed as the Acting Principal of
Bomet University College on 16" October 2017: Prof. Loice C hemgetich Mam and Prof. Joshua
kwonyike were appoinied on 9th November 2017 as the Acting Deputy Principal in charge of
Admimstration and Finance (A&F) and Academic and Student Affairs {A&SA) respectively,

I would like to congratulate all of us who made this vear a success by poing beyond our normal
working hours and working tirelessly in the establishment of Bomet University College. My sincere
and deep gratitude 1o the Chancellor and Viee Chancellor of Maoi University, Council Members and
Management of Moi University and Bomet University College as well as our dedicated staff, local
community and other stakeholders. Together we shall strive to steer the University College w greater
heights as we work towards the award of the Charter,

Prof. Esther W Muchira Tirima
CHAIRPERSON - Bomet University College Council
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REPORT OF THE COLLEGE PRINCIPAL

The higher education sector has experienced
dynamic changes and remendous growth in the
recent past. Curreéntly, the country has 31 public
universities and 6 constituent colleges. 18 private
universities. § private constituent colleges and 14
private insttutions operalmg with letters of
interim authority. The expansion in the number
of universities has increased access w higher
education but al the same timeé also increased
competition amongst the oniversiies.

The most significant event in terms of enrolment for public universities during the vear was the
massive reduction in the number of students that gualified to join universities. This reduction had a
huge negative impact in the University's revenue during this financial year

In addition, the Council of University Education (CUE) is proposing changes in University
Education. The repont titled “Policy Advisory on Rationalisation of Universities and Programmes in
Kenya”, says the creation of the campuses from existing universities should be based on national
development needs, existing infrastruciure and resources, and regional balance. The proposed
recommendations in this advisory will provide a framework for achievement of objectives of
university education and the national development agenda

Homet Liniversity College is a new Constiteent College of Mot University and is very strategic in
developing unique academic programs, Our Philosophy of a green University is captured in our 2018
Master Plan that is consistent with the strategic plan for 2018-2023 and it aims at delivering quality
and relevant academic Programs. Financial constraints are o major challenge to universities in Kenya
and Bomet University College is not an exception. In order 1o minimize this risk. the Universiiy
College in its green philosophy is in the process of establishing a Solar Park which will be a great
milestone as it will reduce the financing dependence on the National Treasury.

As a newly established University college, we rely to a large extent on the support from the
Government through the State Department of University Education and Research. The current critical
needs for the University College includes hiring of core staff as proposed in 20182019 budget in
order 1o meel the Commission for University Education standard requirements for service delivery. It
1s anticipated that operational expenses will increase in the subsequent financial vear as the stafl and
the student population expands. With the curremt low level’ of Government Capitation and
Appropriation in Adid. it will be an uphill task for Bomet University College to offer services wo its
stakeholders since the total revenues will not match the operational activitics. We have therefore
made an appeal to the State Department of Lniversity Education and Research 1o support our sppeal
for additional financing.

Page xii



Bomet University College
Annual Report and Financial Statemoents
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Capital Projecis:

The ongoing Government funded project in the Liniversity College includes construction of the
Tuition Block, Library, Multipurpose Hall and Stwudent Hostels (two) at a tolal approved cost of
kshs ], 391982 469 The overall completion of the project is at 24% apant from the tuition block
which is B0% complete having been given priority in order 1w provide teaching space for the
increasing number of students expected to report in September 2018, At the time of 1is establishment.
Bomet University College did not have infrastructural facilities except for an old tuition block that
was inherited from Technical Traming Instituie {mentored by Eldoret National Polytechnic) which
also serves as a temporary office space for administrative and scademic stafl

Establishment of Bomet University College:

Bomet University College was gazetied as a Constituent College of Mol Universily on 4= August
2017, The College had initially been established as a Campus of Moi University. Following the
gazettement, the University College Council was appointed and insugurated on 10" November 2017
[he University College was subsequently handed over by Moi Umiversity Council on 0" March
2018

The Chancellor Moi University Prof. Miriam Were with Bomet University College Council
during Bomet University College Council Insuguration on 10th Nov 2017

From Left Seated: Prof Cheruivot T. {Ag. Principal), Prof. Miriam Were, Prof. Esther W, M.
Tirima (Council Chairperson).,

Rishop Dr. R. Langat, Dr. Nearari J. Standing from right: Dr. Amenva P. Nvakundi A.. Dr, P.
Ithondeka and Mr, Alex Tom Majani.
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Prof. Esther W, M. Tirima- Chairperson of Bomet University Colfege Council with Dy, Jeremiah
Aoshal- Chairman of Moi University Council during the official handover of Bomet University
Coflege on 20" March 2018. Loaking on are the Vice Chancellor of Moi University Prof. Tsaac
Kosgey and Bomet University Coflege Council members

Appreciation

On behalf of Management, | would like to express our sincere pratitude and appreciation to the
Government and both Councils of Mot University and Bomet University College for the support,
nurturing and advice that they accorded to us dunng the yvear

| also want 1o thank our stall and students, other sponsors and all the stakeholders for the help and
support that we confinue o receive

Prof. Thomas Kimeli Cheruivor
Acting Principal and Secretary 1o Council
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The roles and functions of the College Council are clearly defined and it includes providing oversight
of management and giving the strategic direction of the University College. The Council defines the
University's College Strategic Goals. Strategies. Objectives, and Values and ensures that procedures
and practices are put in place 10 ensure compliance. The Council develops short and long term goals
of the University. develops strategies to achieve those goals and monitors the performance of the
University College through Performance Contracting. The Finance. Administration, Strategy,
Building and Development Committee of Council approves annual budgets, quarterly reports and
spearheads the prepamation of financial statements and finally reports to the full Council, In addition.
the same commuttee ensures that the University College has adequate syvstems of internal controls
together with appropriate monitoring of compliance activities o ensure business continuity, The
Audit and Compliance Committee of Council advices the University College on ways to improve
internal control systems, financial reporting as well follow-up of audit recommendations. The
University College Council has unrestricted access to timely and relevant information as well as
advice and services of the College Principal to discharge iis duties effectively.

The Council operates in compliance with the Mwongozo code that offers corporate governance
framework for all state corporations. The Council prepares an annual almanac showing the schedule
of meetings planned for each vear, Durmg the vear, the University College Council held regular
quarterly meetings, while special meetings were called when necessary,

The University Council is headed by the Chairperson and is composed of nine members inclusive of
the College Principal who is the only executive member, The constitution of the Council considered
the requirements of the education sector. diversity of skills, academic qualifications. gender, age and
experience necessary o add value to the operations of the University College. The Council Members
are appointed to various Council Committees with well-defined terms of reference and mandated to
carry out specific functions. The Members of Council therefore bring their diverse experiences in
deliberations during the Council meetings. The Council committees have well defined terms of
reference and are intended to facilitate efficient decision making in the full Council meetings,

The Council committees are as follows;

Name of the Committee Members

Dr. Jane Ngarar — Chairperson
Members:

Audit and Compliance Commitiee Mr. Alex Majani

Mr. Charles . Nvakundi

| C.P.A Jones Kimeu- Co-opted

| D, Peter A Nvakundi — Chairperson
- Members:
| Dr. Peter M. Ithondeka

Bishop (Rev) Dr. R, K. Langai

LB i R | b |

Finance. Administration. Strategy,
Building and Development Committee
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| Academic, Research. Extension. Studenis Affairs and
Sealing Committee

Mr. Alex Tom Majani - Chair
Members:

Bishop {Rev) Dr. B. K. Langat
Dr. Jane Nparari

Mr. Charles 0. Nyakundi

Human Resource. Governance and Stafl
Disciplinary Committee

Dr. Peter M. Ithondeka — Chairperson
Members:

Dr. Peter A Nyvakundi

Mr. Alex Majani

Mrs. Susan Karanja

Appointments and Promotions Committes for
Professors, Associate Professors, Deans, Directors and

Equivalent.

Prof. Esther W. M Tirima- Chairperson
Members will be constituted on need
basis.

I'he board has a conllict of interest register and al every meeting. members are required to declare
any conflict of intevest with regard to the matters under discussion.

While the Council ses the direction and provide guidance of the overall strategy, the day o day
runming of the University College through implementation of the approved policies. has been
delegared 1o the College Principal. However, the Council 15 responsible lor the stewardship of the
University College and assumes responsibility for the effective control ol the University.
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VIL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SECTION A: Operational and Financial Performance

Finds relating 1o Bomet University College from the National Treasury were channelled
through Muoi University up to February 2018 and most of the transactions relating to Finance
and Procurement were processed in Moi University. Financial reconciliations were done and
formed part of the handover report was done on 29" March 2018. We have therefore
consolidated financial ransactions that were realized in Moi University and Bomet University
College in order to come up with these financial statements.

Academic Activities

There was no disruption of academic activities in the entire 20172018 financial vear that
affected majority of Public Universities as a result of the industrial action which occurred in
January 2018, Bomet University College is still new and relies much on part time teaching
since substaniive teaching staff is in the process of being recruited.

Academic Orientation

I'he University College endeavors to be oriented towards Applied Science, Technology and
Innovation, As an integral part. all academic programmes and processes must incorporate
green lechnology components for sustainability. Below 1s the list of proposed and existing
schools.

Existing Schools
(1) Bomet Business School
(11} School of Education
(1ii) School of Humanities and Social Sciences
Froposed Schools
{i) Sehool of Green Agriculiure and Envirenment
(ii) School of Green Science and Technology
{iii) School of Alternative Medicine
{iv} School of Sustainable Tourism, Hospitality and Wildlile
(v} School of Communication and Media
{vi) Bomet Law School
(vii} School of Green Built Environment
(viit) Bomet Graduate School
Proposed Research Centers
(i) Centre for Green Livesiock Research
{ii) Centre for Tea Rescarch
{iti} Centre for Research in Alternative Medicine
{iv}) Environmental and Climate Change Research Centre
{v] Centre for Research in Afncan Musicology
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Academic Programmes
Bomet University College offers the following Senate approved academic programmes of
Moi University with 2 groups of studenis in first vear second Semester-and second vear
second semester; -
Schoal of Arts and Social Sciences (Total of 18 students):
{i) Bachelor of Science in Communication and Public Relations
{it) Bachelor of Ants in Geography
{ii1) Bacheler of Aris in Kiswahili
{iv) Bachelor of Ans (Religions, History, Linguistics, Literature)
School of Business and Economics (Total of 123 students)
(i} Bachelor of Science in Human Resource Management
(1) Bachelor of Science in Entrepreneurship
{1i1] Bachelor of Science in Project Planning and Management
{iv} Bachelor of Business Management
School of Education (Total of 291 students)
(1) Bachelor of Education (Ans)
i11} Bachelor of Education (Business Studies)

Bomet University College will develop new academic programmes progressively as new
Schools are established as proposed in the Strategic Plan.

Since there was no disruption of learning, the University College collected Ksh.13, 703, 461
in tuition fees and related charges for government sponsored program out of the budgeted
Kshs, 13.220.160 for the linancial year leading to a favourable variance of 4%. Likewise.
Privately Sponsored Program (PSSP) achieved a favourable variance of Kshs. 334,726 as at
30% June 2018. Collections of kshs.9, 156,060 was budgeted for the PSSP program. however
Kshs, 9,490,786 was received in 201772018 financial vear.

The 1otal student debtors as at 30" June 2018 were Kshs.1. 300.890.

Government Capitation

The University College received monthly capitation from the Excheguer up to the month of
June 2018 (12 months) all wotalling Kshs. 120.800.002. It is worth noting that the make-up of
the exchequer grants was Kshs. 70,466,667 reeeived in Moi University on behalt of Bomet
University College for the months of July 2017 1o January 2018 while Kshs. 50.333.335 were
received in the bank account of Bomet University College.
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Summary of Monthly Capitation Received

Bomet University College spent a total of Kshs.6l, 210012 on afl personal emoluments,
casuals and part time lecturers. The financial report on personnel emoluments centred on staff
who were actively working in Bomet University College between July 2017 and June 2018,
There were a total of 35 permanent siaff working in Bomet University College as at
30™ June 2018 and the institution is in the process of recruiting staff in order to meet the
needs of the various academic programs and operational support as per the requirements of
the commission of University Education. Owing 1o this, part time lecturers and casual staff
have been engaged to brdge the giup until the proposed stafl establishment is achieved. We
therefore expect the positive variance to reduce once the relevant statts have been recruited
into the various positions.

17 number of staff recruited 1o various departments are reporting in July 2018 and we expect
the monthly gross salary pavment excluding that for casuals and part time teaching claims o
be Kshs. 8.2 million per month up from the current Kshs.3.8 million monthly. However. the
current stall recruited will not be suflicient and therefore it is anticipated that the currént rate

Menth Amount (Kshs) fﬁ::ﬂ:gﬁ;‘:”““
July, 17 8,400,000.00 MU

Aug-17 5.400,000.00 ML

Sep-17 £.400,000.00 | MU

Qct-17 8.400.000.00 MU

Nov-17 8.400,000.00 ML

July 2017-Nov 2017 8.333.333.00 MU

Dec-17 10.066.667.00 ML

Jan-18 10,066.667.00 MU

Feb-18 10.066.667.00 ML

Mar-18 10,066.667.00 Bomet University College
| Apr-18 10,066,667 .00 Bomet University College
May-18 1 006666700 Bomet University College
Jun-18 1 0,066,667 .00 Bomet University College
TOTAL 120,800.002.00 i

of capitation will not suffice the University College in the preceding financial year.

Bomet University College will therefore request the Govemment to increase the financing
support in order to enhance teaching facilities, infrastructure and academic programs that will

subsequently lead 1o increased revenue from exchange transactions.

In order 10 enhance operational efMficiency and cost savings. the University College will

procure an Integrated Enterprise Resource Planning system in 2001 8/2019 financial vear.
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SECTION B

Compliance with Statutory Requirements

Dunng the financial vear 2017/2018 the University College complied with statutors
requirements with regard to deduction and remittance of PAYE. Withholding VAT, NHIF and
MWSSF. Mo University will continue to remit other payroll deductions since they are using
funds of Bomet Umversity College received in their bank accounts. The operational issues
relating 1o the payments were agreed amicably between Moi and Bomet University College
and documented in the handoveritakeover report of 29" March 2018. Any remittance from
payroll deductions up 1o 307 June 2018 which includes pension. bank loans and insurance

premums rests on Moi University

SECTION C

key Projects and Investment Decisions the Entity is PlanningTmplementing

The ongoing praject is for the construction of Tuition Block, Library, Multipurpose Hall and
2 Hostels all totalling kshs. 1, 391 982 4649, As at 0™ June 2018, the tuition block was 80%
L'|":]'I|"'|L"|'L' and this was LEVEN much ]'lTI-.'I-ril}' EIVEn '.I'I,'lr the number of students 15 INETEASINEG
hence the need for teaching space as from September 2018. The Library and Multipurpose

fall 15 2% while the hostels are oy (8%,

Wew Fuitfon Block Under Construciion
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SECTIOND

Major risks facing the University

The University’s activities are exposed 1o o number of risks that may hamper smooth
operations. The risks include liquidity risk. credit risk and market risks, among others.
Liquidity risk may anse from the University College failure to meet its obligations as a result
of financial difficulties. The University College will manage this risk by continuously
reviewing its cash flow forecasts and strengthening intemmal controls as well observing
adherence 10 spending per vote heads,

The credit risk arising from student fees pavments will be managed by ensuring that students
pay the requisite fees at the time of registration and signing of nominal rolls and also before
sitting for their examinations. The marker risk results from anticipated reduction in the
number of privately sponsored students admined 1o the University. This is caused by the
lowering of cut off points by KLICCPS for students joining the regular program and the
Commission of Liniversity Education muinining high admission requirements for students
joining the Private Program.,

Bomet University College will deal with this risk by aggressive marketing of programs. re-
engineering its academic programs 1o meet unique market needs and above alone adopting
open leaming systems to capture students in diverse locations.

SECTION E
Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations

There were court cases between Bomet County Government versus Moi University
challenging the esiablishment of the University College in the current location. However, the
court case was positively concluded in November 2017 in favour of Moi University and the
verdict of the court was that each party 1o bear its costs of the law suit.

SECTIONF
Financial probity and serious governance issues

There were no financial probity and governance issues during the financial vear 2017/2018.
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VIII. REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE COUNCIL

The Council Members submil their report together with the financial sistements for the vear ended
June 30, 2018 which show the state of the University's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the University College is to continue w provide university education through
teaching, research and outreach.

Resulis

The consalidated results of the entity for the year ended June 30, 2018 are set out on page 1.

Members of Council

The members of the University Council who served during the vear are shown on page V1.
The University College Council were appointed and inaugurated on 10™ November 2017,

Auditors

The Auditor General 15 responsible for the statutory audit of the University in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 20135,

By Order of the Council

e

Prof. Thomas Kimeli Cheruivort
Professor of Corporate Social Responsibility, Sustainability & Strategy
Secretary to Couneil
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IX.

STATEMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012and Secction 47 of the Universities Act
require the University College Council 1o prepare financial statements in respect of the University
College. which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University College st the end of
the financial year and the operating results of the University College for that vear, The Council
Members are also required 1o ensure that the University College keeps proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable sccuracy the financial position of the University College, The
Council Members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the University.

The Council Members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University College for and as at
the end of the financial yvear ended on June 30, 2018, This responsibility includes: (1) maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue 1o be effective
throughout the reporting period: (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing, implementing and
muintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatermnents, whether due to ermor or
fraud: (iv) safeguarding the assets of the University; (v) selecting and applving appropriate
accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Council Members accept responsibility for the University College financial statements, which have
been prepared using spproprigte accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates. in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in
the manner required by the PFM Act. 2012 and the Universities Act. The Council Members are of the
opinion that the University’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Bomet
University College transactions during the financial vear ended June 30, 2018, and of the University
College financial position as at that date, The Council Members further confirm the completeness of
the accounting records maintained for the University, which have been relied upon in the preparation of
the University College financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing has come 1o the atention of the Council Members o indicate that the University College will
Nt remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statemoent.

Approval of the financial statements

I'he University College financial statements were approved by the University College Council on

/&Fﬂ_ﬂ‘ﬁ_ﬁﬁ_m and signed on its behalf by:

e e

Chairperson of Council Ag. College Principal
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X.  REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON BOMET UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON BOMET UNIVERSITY COLLEGE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

REPORT ON THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial slatements of Bomet University College
sel out on pages 1 to 31 which comprise the stalement of financial position as at
30 June 2018, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policles
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of
the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 | have abtained
all the information and explanatons which, to the best of my knowladge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of the audit

in my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairldy, in all materal
respects, the financial position of Bomet University Callsge as at 30 June 2018 . and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended. in accordance
with Intemational Public Sectar Accounting  Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply
with the Universities Acl No 42 of 2012 and Public Finance Management Act, 2012

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Property, Plant and Equipment

The gpening balances for fumiture, plant and equipment of Kshs 84480326 and
computers of Kehs 1 847 8689 under property, plant and equipment disclosed in Note
20 to the financral statements have nol been supported by a valuation regort from an
gxpert as at (ne date of their ransfer from Mol University to Bomet University College
on 29 March 2018, In the circumstances, it cannot be ascertained whether property
pltant and sguipment balance of Kahs 1226755099 a5 at 30 June 2018 is fairly
stated

2. Capital Work-in-Progress

Inciuded n the property, plant and eguipment balance of Kshs 1 286 755089 15 an
amount of Kshs 202 000000 iIn respect of capital work-in-progress. Howaver, the
figure hias not beern adeguately supported by relevant architect cartficates and ledger
account. Conseguently, the completeness and accuracy of the vaiue of wark- in-
progress as reflectad In the financial statements cannot be corfirmed

Regrard of the duvivor Diemored on e Mivooctd Saremens of Bomed Umiversine Coffege for-the ywar eied
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3. Exchequer Grant

Tha statemeant of firancial performance reflects an amount of Kshs 145 750,002 under
transfers from oiher governments - gifts and services in kind which consists of an
operational grant of Kshs, 120,800,002 and an amount of excheguer grant brought
forward of Kshs.24,850,000 The exchequer grants were received by Mol University
on behalf of the Bomet University Coliege. However, the amount of the exchequer
gran! transferred to Bomet University College has not been adequately supported by
documents such as vouchers and bank account details. Conseauently, the accuracy
and completenass of the reported amount of the exchequer grant received in the year
under review can not be confirmea

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institubions (ISSAls) | am independent of Bomet University College in sccordance
with ISSAl 30 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled oiher ethical responsibilities in
accardance with the ISSAl and in accordance with ofher ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya | beleve that the acdit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropniate fo provide a basis for my
gualified opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matlers are those matters that, in our professional judgmant, are of most
significance In the audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters
were adgdressad in the context of the audit of the financial statemenis as a whole, and
in forming: my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on thess
matters. For the key audit matter below. a description of how the audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor-General's Reszponsibilities
for the Audit section of the report, including in relation to this matter Accordingly, the
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to the assessment
of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements The results of the
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below,
provide the basis for my audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements

Financial Operations of Bomet University College

Bomet University College was established as a constituent College of Moi University
through the Legal Notice No 145 of 27 July 2017, However, the Bomet University
College Council was inaugurated on 10 November 2017 During the transition period,
all development and recurrent expenditure wers paid by Mol University on behalf of
Bomet University College.

The audit adgdressed this key audit matter by vouching all the revenue earned and
axpenditure incurred during the transition period

REPORT ON LAWFULMNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES
Conclusion

As required by Article 229(E) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and




Basis for Conclusions on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources
and Effectivenass of Internal Contral, Risk Management and Governance sections of
my repart, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that public resources have not bean applied lawfully and in an effective way

Basis for Conclusion

1. Legal Fees

Mai University settled a total of Kshs, 11,223,200 in legal fees on behalf of Bomet
University College to Advocates in respect of a land case which was concluded befare
the inauguration of Bomet University College Council on 10 November 2017, However,
a review of the approved budget for the financial year 2017/2018 revealed that there
was no allocation for legal fees in the year under review yet this payment was made
from the exchequer grants received on behalf of Bomet University College.

2. Construction of Library, Student Hostels, Lecture Halls, Kitchen and
Multipurpose Hall at Bomet University College

Moi University advertised Tender No. MU/7/7/2018-2017 for the proposed construction
of two library blocks, 4 No. student hostels, 2 No. lecture halls and 2 No. dining/kitchen
and 2 No, Multi-purpose Halls for Bomet University College in Bomet County and
Mama Ngina College Campus in Kiambu County. The University subsequentiy
awarded the contract to a firm at a sum of Kshs 2 700,000,000 with the expected
complation period of 104 days. However, after notification of the award but before
signing of the contract. the scope of work changed to include Bomet University College
only following the transfer of mentorship of Mama Mgina Coliege Campus to Kenyatta
University on 8 November 2018

However, the following anomalies have been noted:

i} The initial tender involved construction works in Bomet University College
and Mama Ngna College Campus. Both projects  tolalling
Kshs 2,770,000,000 were advertizsed as one tender contrary to the provision
of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act, 2015 which prohibite
combining two high value procurements for works as one project

i) Mentership of Mama Ngina College Campus was later taken over by
Kenyatta University after the tender had been awarded and award
notification sent to the bidder who had won the tender. Mol University and
the contractor thereafter proceeded lo sign a reduced contract of
Kshs 1,300,000,000 for Bomet University College. Although the scope of
the contract had substantially reduced by about 50%, the contractor was
allowed to continue with the work instead of floating a new tender contrary
to the provision of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act, 2015

3. Encroachment on University Land

Two parcels of land - LR No.307 and LR No.308 in Bomet town which are owned by
Bomet University College have been encroached on by third parties and squatlers
These parcels of land do not have perimeter fencing around their boundaries for
security purposes. Consequently, the University College risks losing part of its land to
unauthorized third parties.
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4, Construction of Dinning Hall

included in the trade and other payables from exchange fransactions balance of
Kshs.33,225,371 is a contingent liability of Kshs 4,980,675 relating to construction of
a tlemporary dining hall that was done during 2015-2016 financial year. However,
tender documents and evaluation report, progress reports and certificate of completion
in respect of the project have, however, not been provided for audit review.

Physical verification of the project revealed poor workmanship and low guality of
materials used in the construction. The bullding remains incomplete, has not been
commissioned and is currently not in use.

5. Fallure to Remit Gratuity and Pension Contributions

Included in the employees’ cost of Kshs 61,210,012 for the year under reviaw is an
amount of Kshs 3,561,325 relating to the gratuity and pension contributions for
employees which were deducted from the payroll by Mot University on behalf of Bomet
University College but had not been remitted to the relevant bodies as of 30 June
2018. Failure to remit statutory deductions exposes the Universily College fo penalties
and interest on any outstanding amount.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
| comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are In compliance, in all matenal respects, with the authorities
that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS INTERNAL CONTROLS. RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7{1){a) of the Pubiic Audit Act, 2015, based on the procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and
Basis for Conclusions on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources
and Effectiveness of Internal Control, Risk Management and Governance sections of
my report, | confirm that, nothing eise has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, nsk management and govemnance were not effectve.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Waak Internal Controls

The University College does not have enough staff in its finance depariment to enable
segregation of duties in order to strengthen the internal controls. Further, most of the
transactions during the year under review wera handled at Moi University before the
University College recrurted a Senior Accountant in July 2018.

2. Senior Officers of the University College not in Substantive Appointmant

Senior officers namely, the Principal, Deputy Principal -Finance and Administration,
and Deputy Principal - Academic and Student Affairs are nol in substantive
appointment and thus, creating management challenges in the running of the




University College. Consequently, some key resolutions of the Council may not be
implemented owing to lack of substantive appointments in senior positions.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 1315 and ISSAI 1330. The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all matenal respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
siatements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
{Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whethar duee to frawd or error and for its assessment of
the affectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of Bomet University College to confinue sustain services, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis
of accounting unless the management either intends to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
stalements described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compiiance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources
are applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectivensess of how the entty monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory reguirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and nisk management, and ensuring the adeguacy and effectiveness of the control
environment

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 228(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is & high
level of assurance, bul is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
IS55Als will always detect @ matenal misstatement and weakness when It exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually
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or in the aggregate, they could reasaonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of usars taken on
the basis of thesa financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements. a complianca audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects. the
activities, financial transactions and infermation reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in comphance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution,

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal contrel in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the pravisions of Section 7(1}(a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 228(7) of the Canstitution,
My consideration of the internal control would not necessanly disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the [55Als. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of tha internal
control components does nol reduce to a relatvely low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounis that would be mataral in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
pericd by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, intermal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the nisk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may detenorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 155Als, | exercise professional
Judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |denbfy and assess the risks of material misstatermnant of the financial statements,
whether dua to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduras responsive o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinicn. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

= [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the approprateness of the management’s use of the going concem
basis of accounting and, basad on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exisis related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the abllity of Bomet University College to sustain its services. If | conclude that &
matenal uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statement= or, if such disclosures are



inadequate, to modify my opinion, My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the University College to cease sustaining its services.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Bomet University College to express an opinion an the
financial statements.

« Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit,

| aleo provide management with a stalement that | have complied with relevant athical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters thal may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence. and
where applicable, refated safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with management, | determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. These matters are described in my auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when,
in exiremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matlter should not be
communicated in my report because the adverse conseqguences of doing 20 would
reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS
AUD -GENERAL

MNairaobi

04 July 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Particulars Note | 2017/2018 | 2016/2017

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions Kshs kshs

Transfers from other governments—gifis and services-in-kind | 6 145,750,002 -
145,750,002

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of good & services T 15,358,830 -

Other Incomes : "

Finance income - external Investments - =

15,358 850 =

Total revenue 161,108,852

Expenses

Emplovee costs 8 61,210,012 -

Remuneration of Directors 9 10,955,571 -

Depreciation and amortization expense 10 5.(08K.852 -

Repairs and maintenance 1 4.410,603 -

General expenses 12 36,228,720 -

Finance costs -

Total expenses 117,893,758 -

Other gains/(losses) - -

Gain/{ Losses) on sale of assets - .

Total other gains/{losses)

The notes sel oul on pages 8 1o 28 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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XIL  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 12018

Particulars Note | 20172018 201672017
Assels ' hshs Kzhs
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13 27382112 -
Receivables from exchange transactions 14 1 T03,400 |
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 15 23,614,489 -
Inveniories ) |6 975.604 -
Investments ! = :
Total Current Assets | 53.677.604 | :
Non-current assets .
Property plant and equipment 20 1.296,755.000
Investments — : - -
Total Nn_wl:ﬂrrm Assels 1,296,755,099 -
Total Assets 1.350,432,703 -
Liabilities |
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 17 33.225.371 | -
Provisions 18 | 300,000 .
Fees Prepayments | 19 2. 342,710 -
Total Current Liabilities 35,898,081 =
Non-current linbilities 1,
Borrowings <
| 5 m
| Total linbilities 1l 35,898,081 -
Net assefs | 1.314.534,622 =
Capital Reserves 1,271.319,528 -
Accumulated surplus ' 43,215,094 -
Total net assets | l 1.314.534,622 X
Total net assets and liabilities . 1,350, 432,703 -
The Finuncial Statements set out on pages | to 31 were signed on behalf of the University College
Council by:
W e &
Prof. Esther W. Muchira Tirima a‘f Prof, Thomas Kimeli Cheruivot
Chairperson of Council; Date.... Acting Principal; Date.....= ‘f E'kf..{. 19

Prof. Loice Chemgetich Maru QL f ‘H" [61
Acting Deputy Principal- Administration and Finance; Date....= L L. A R



Bomet University College
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

XL STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AS AT 30™ JUNE 2018

Capital Hevenue Total
Reserves - Reserves
Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balance as at 1 July 2017 {1 0
Surplus for the year - 43,215,094 43,215,004 |
Capital Grants received during 30,144,518 . 30,144,518
the vear N ]
Valuation of fixed assets 1.241,175,010 - | 1241175010
Balance as at 30 June 2018 1.271,319,528 42,646,036 | 1.314,534,622

Capital Reserves relates 1o revaluation surplus on revaluation of fixed assets and capital development
grants received from the Government. The University College valued its land, motor vehicles, and
buildings including work in progress in order 1o prepare the financial statements,

Five parcels of land in Sigor have since been amalgamated into one piece of land measuring
approximately 57.08 acres and registered as KER/SIGOR/ 1834 in favour of County Government of
Bomet and reserved for Bomet University College. There are no encumbrances registered against the
title as it was inspected during the valuation. There is a parcel measuring 4.16 hectares or [1.3 acres
situated within Bomet town, off Quarry road next to St. Michael Primary school and is where the
Bomet University College is currently located. Registration of the land is ongoing but details
pertaining to it are contained in FR 32828 a1 the Bomet Land registry. Finally. the University
College owns land adjacent to Bomet stadium and Bomet Teachers Training College. The land 15
registered in the name of Cabinet Secretary to the National Treasury (Bomet University College) as
Bome! Town/308 and Bomet Town/307 measuring approximately 18.23 hectares or 44.997 acres and
on a 99 years lease from the County Government of Bomet with effect from 17 April 2015.
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X1V,

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2018
Particulars 201772018 2016/2017
Kshs. ' Kshs,

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 96,016,168 -
Cash flows from npc-r:tiﬁg activities |
Keceipis
Transfers from other governments—gifis and services-in-kind | 6 145,750,002 -
Rendering of good & services | 7 15,358 850 | -
Other Incomes . -
Total Receipts 161,108,852 -
Payments
Employee costs tl 61.210.012 -
Remuneration of Directors o 10,955,571 -
[errtuiaiinn and amortization expense 10| (5.088.852) -
Repairs and maintenance I 4410603 -
General expenses 12| 36228720 | -
Total Income | 107,716,053 -
Net cash flows from operating activities 53,392,799 -
Cash flows from investing activities T

mpmpcm » plant, equipment and intangible assets | 20 | { 138,996.760) .
Purchase of Motor vehicles 20 [ (13.174.613) %
Net cash flows used in investing activities (152.171,373) -
Cash flows from financing activities I
Capital development grants from GOK | 30.144.518 | -
Capital development grants transferred o Rivatex E.A Lid - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities 30.144.518 -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (68,634,056) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the quarter 27,382,112 -
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

No. | Particolars Approved | Revised Actual Variance | %
Budget Budget | Varlance
200172008 20FT201E Asmt Mah | As ot Mih A al 30 |
June 2018 | June 2018 | June 2018
Ksh. ksh. Ksh. K, Yo
INCOME
i Exchequer Grants | (REBOGRE | 100200000 | 120,800,002 00,00, (12 | 20
2 Exchequer Cirants BF(20162017) [2 038 50 | 24862465 | HLOA0 (KK 17,835 | il
3 Tuition & Related Charpes 14,300,160 | 14300160 | 15358850 1058690 7
TOTAL 127238750 | 139,962,625 | 161,108,852 1. 040,227 | i5
I |
EXPENDITURE ; |
Personal Emaluments Ksh. hush. Ksh. Ksh. | %
4 Basic Salories 30293032 | 30193032 | 23642306 | 24.650.726 49
] Cosuals T A0, 000 7 A0 D635 | [ 1L.606.R33) (25
(] Port Timers 1615200 1,615,200 3474941 | 14259 4
T Cirntuity & Pension contribution 3025895 3025 895 3561325 | {335.430) i8]
B Salory Arrears - Lobbn 483 | (1.666483)
L Houise allowance | 21.594.636 | 21594636 | 10.514,327 | 1,080,309 51
10 | Ocher personal nJlL'u'-i'n.ri.l:cl- 13,806,910 | 13806910 3353778 153, 134 T
11| Hoase o Office allowance 24, 541 2664341 3.8k, 120 (1.135.780) (43}
12 | Passage & Leave expenses 640,000 | i, 000 185,900 {125.900) {210
Sulb-total 102, 40h, 004 . N2 460004 | 6L210,0012 41,250,002 Al
|
_ Operations & Maintenance: Ksh, Ksh. Ksh. Ksh, i
13 Medical expenses I 108,981 (10E.981) -
14 | Transport Gperating expenses Bhh a1d | hih Gl 4 117,180 £49.424 B2
15 | Travelling & Accomm. exps. S10,000 10,000 BAYS IR | (5.985.262) (1,174}
19 E'-T-I:EI'HI;ME_EjamlﬂEJ'l 220000 240400 G300 145, T} bl
20 | Postal & Telegram expenses - T i 1,960 .
21 | Intermnet Expenses b, 200 000 1, 2000 00 2,038,809 (B3804 1701
12 | Deans & Senate comm. exp | 500,000 S0, 205 200 204, Rk 5
13 | Council Expenses | 000,000 F000000 | 10955571 | (3.935571) 119y
24 | Public celebration & Tinerals 121 000 121 000 - I3, (i 1K}
35 | Electricity, water & consgrvancy 2R0,000 280,000 | 203257 (E2.257) (329}
26 | Teaching materinls 156,000 § 56,000 26,454 129,504 83
27 | Publishing & printing expenses 13,500 13,500 - 13,500 100
28 | Purchase of uniform & clofhing 32 460 23,464 146,688 [124.228) (353}
19 | Library Expences 42 (0 42 (WK 105,51k (67, 750) L1610
30 | Purchase of Suatlonery 178,750 | TR, 750 183294 (1.604.231) {937
31 | Advenising & Publicsty 1262500 | 1,262,500 99,150 | 1,163,350 97 |
32 | Pavment of rent/rabes 11,500,000 5000000 | 73775453 | (2377.343) (48}
33} | Computer Expenses 243, 180 243, 180 L7600 131,480 54
M| Insusance expenies 4,000,000 853,921 | 3,136,079 79
35 | Leeal Expenses | - | 11322400 | (11.222.400) | 0
36 | Cleaning Materials & Detergents 351,000 291,000 | 153207  137.793 | 3
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37 | Purchase of Motor Vehicles | 12723875 | 13074813 | (450.738) 34
38 | Purchase of Plam & Equipment 1107672 11074672 LRI3323 | £4.340 !;
39 | Imter-University Games 38,500 38500 ATI878 | (433378) [ (LI26)
40 | Purchase of medical Equip 17,500 | 17,500 - 17,500 100
41 | Maimenance of Plant & Equip. 2250 12,250 - 12350 10
12 | Refurbishment and Maintenance of Buildings 10,500 10,500 | 2.016.413 | (2003.913) | (19.104) |
43 | Equipping and Maintenance of Hostels 70, e T.000 2.277.000 | (2.207.000) [3.153)
44| Maimenance of water supplies 35,000 35,000 35,000 1K)
45 | Maintenance of Playgrounds 18,750 18,750 | . 18,750 1K)
46 | Comtract Services & Subscriptions 402500 403500 162232 |  240.268 [
47 | Students Ficld Trips Courses | 20,060 120,960 320,500 | (199.540) (165)
45 | Swdents Activities 5601, 6000 0,00 700,467 | (238867 (43)
49 | Contingent Liabilities §7,500 87500 70310 17,190 20
&0 | 150 & 150 Relosed Expenses 35,000 | 35,000 - 35,000 | 1
51 | Strutegic Plan Implementation & Monitoring 35,000 | 2,535,000 | 2,144,739 390,271 | 1
23 | Admission Expenses ) : 150000 | [ 150.000) | .
Sub-total 24778736 | 37502610 | 65792829 | (25.290,218) {75)
Gross Expenditure 127.238,750 | 139,962,625 | 127002842 | 12,959,783 9
et SurplusiDeficit) - - 306,010 |
MNode:

The surplus above differs from what has been projected in the Smtement of Financial Fosition since it includes

purchase of motor vehicles and plant and equipment amounting 1o Kshs, 13,174,613 and Kshs. 1,023,323

respectively. In addition, the depreciation expense of Kshs, 5,088,852 had not been budgeted for as an expense
in the period under review.

Budget notes
fa} Ttem 13 The government increased the monthly capitation in December 2017 by Kshs.1, fuafy, 6T
monthly and backdated it to July 2017 thereby resulting into a 1wotal favourable vanance of Kshs.

20,000,002 representing 20,

(b} ltem 2: Moi University had received Kshs.200 million on 13 April 2006 on behalf of Bomet

(ch

id)

University College and out of this amount; Moi University Council approved kshs. 150 million to be
used for capital development expenditure and the balance of Kshs.50 million to be nsed for recurrent
expenditure. While preparing the recurrent budget for 2017/201 8, Kshs.24, 950,000 out of the kshs.50
million was considered 1o be utilized for recurrent expenditure. The remaining amount out of kshs, 30
million had been utilized in the recurvent budget of 2006/2017 financial vear and the relevant expenses
were paid by Maoi University on behall of Bomet University Coliege.

Personal Emoluments; The wotal positive variance of 40% s contributed by the fact that the
University College had a staff number of only 35 and had not emploved statf in the sections required
as per the stafl establishment, Owing to this. part time lecturers and casual staff have been engaged 1o
bridge the gap until the proposed siafl establishment is achieved, We therefore expect the positive
variance 10 reduce once the relevant staffs have been recruited into the various positions.

Item 17; Medical expenses had not been budgeted for in 20172018 financial vear since Bomet
Liniversity College staffs were under the medical scheme of Moi University, The expenses relate 10
purchase of medical drugs for newly established Bomet University College clinic.
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(e} Ttem 19: Bomet University College is 2 new Institution and requires so much 1o be put in place in
terms of infrastructure, policies and structures. Owing to this the University College had 1o facilitate
staff both from Bomet campus and Moi University 10 ensure that the requirements are met and this
included expenses of handing over the University College.

{f1 Ttem 22: The variance wis caused by increased internet capacity leading to increased quarterly
spending by KENET from Kshs 373, 284 1o Kshs 699, 965,

(g} Ttem 24: Bomet University College Council was very active in the initial stages of esablishment
thereby leading to increased expenses. In addition, the Council expenses includes the cost of
inauguration in March 2017 and handover of Bomet University College in March 2018 amounting 1o
Kshs, 951,600 and Kshs. 708,200 respectively. These were expenses for the two councils of hoth
Bomet University College and Mai University,

{h} Ttem 33; Bomet University College does not have hostels for students and it wiss considered necessar)
1o map out and rent good premises in order 10 encourage students to the new institution. Students i
far sccommodation fees but the University College subsidises a portion of it since students are oul of
session between May and August and vet the lease agreements cover a peniod of one year.

(i} ltem 363 there was a court of Bomet County Government versus Moi University regarding the
establishment of the University College but it was positively concluded and Moi University was
granted a green light 1o establish Bomet University College.

(j) Trem 38; Bomet University College did not have vehicles for use and the only saloon vehicle was on
loan from Maoi University. The budget was revised to allow purchased a Tovow Prado o be used by
the principal and a Toyota Hisce 1o support other activities of the University. This has now been
considered as a capital development expensa.

{k} Item 44: Bomet University College bought beds, matiresses and reading furnitune for the leased
hastels.

(1} ltem 52; Bomet University College prepared the Strategic Plan and Master Plan in 2017/2018 and the
budget was revised for anticipated costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bomet University College is established by and derives its authority and accountability from
Liniversities Act and the Moi University Charter 2013, The University is whollv owned by the
Covernment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenyva, The entity’s principal activity is the
provision of university education through teaching, research and outrench,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement ot re-valuved amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and Minancial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated
recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilitles at their present value, The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management
o exercise judgement in the process of applving the Bomet University College socounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note xx
The financial statemenis have been prepared and presented in Kenva Shillings. which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University College.

The financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with the PFM Act the State
Corporations Act and Inmtemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The
accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the vears presented.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i, Relevant new standurds and amendments to poblished standards effective for the
vear ended 30 June 2018

Standard Impact |

IPSAS 39 Applicable: 1" January 2018

Emplovee Benefits | The objective to issue IPSAS 39 was 10 creale convergence io

changes in IAS 19 Emplovee beneliis. The IPSASE needed to

ereate convergence of IPSAS 25 1o the amendments done 1o 1AS

19. The main objective is to ensure accurate information relating |
to pension liabilities arising from the defined benefit scheme by |
doing away with the corridor approach.
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i, New and amended standards and interpretations in isswe but nol vet effective in the

vear ended M Jupne 2017

Standand Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 40: Public | Applicable: 17 January 2019:

Sector The standard covers public sector combinations arising from |
Combinations exchange transactions in which case they are treated similarly I

with [FRS 3iapplicable to acquisitions only) Busines&i
combinations and combinations arising from non-exchange
transachions which are covered purely under Public Sector
combinations as amalgamations.

iil. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2018,

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Fees, taxes and fines

The entitv recognizes revenues from [ees, taxes and fines when the evenl occurs and
the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition
attached that would give rise to a liability 10 repay the amount, deferred income is
recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it
ts probable that the fulure economic benefits or service potentinl associated with the
asset will flow 1o the entity and the fair value of the asset cun be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entitics

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other governmeént entitics are
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods,
services and property) il the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the
economic benefils or service potentinl related to the asset will flow to the entity and
can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants arc recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of
financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over ihe
useful life of the assets thai has been acquired using such funds
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iy Revenue from exchange transuctions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference 1o the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred 10 date as a percentage of
total estimated labour howrs.

Where the contract outcome cannol be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only 1o
the extent thal the expenses incurred are recoverable,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buver. usually on delivery of the goods and
when the smount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective vield method. The effective vield
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the lnancial asset
o that asset’s net carrving amount. The method applies this yvield o the principal
outstanding to determine inlerest income each period.

Dividenids
Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the
entity s right to receive payvments is established.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue,

b} Budget information

Tne onginal budget for FY 20017-2018 was approved by the National Assembly in July
2018. Subsequeni revisions or additional appropriations were made 1o the approved budget
in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriste authorities. The additional
appropriations are added 10 the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
approvals in order 1o conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional
appropriastions of Kshs. 12,723,875 on the 2017-2018 budgets following the University
College Council approval.

The entity's budget 15 prepared on a different basis to the actual incoine and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements, The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using & classification based on the nature of expenses in the simiement of Rnancial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the sccrual basis 1o the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation Lo be on the same basis as the approved budger. A nmnpurimn of budget and
actunsl amounts, prepared on a comparable basis tl:s the apprm-'t:d budget, is then presented
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In addition to the Basis difference. adjustments to amounts in the (inancial statements arc
also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A stafement (o reconcile the sctual amounts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budeet and actual amounts and the actual as per the statement
of financial performance has been présented in these financial suemenis.

Taxes

Crrrend fmcome o

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expecied 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and 1ax laws
used o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, of the
reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net
assels and noi in the siatement of financial performance. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the mx returns with respect to situstions in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the hosbility method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and linbilities and their carrving amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred 1ax linbilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. except in
respect of mxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities,
nssociates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be comrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tmx assets are recoghnized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferved tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and wnused
tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in controlled entities. associates and imerests in joint ventures, deferred
tax aszets are recognized only 1o the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reversa in the foreseeable future ond taxable profit will be available against which the
ternporary differences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient wxable profit will be available 10
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred 1ax assets
mre re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognired [0 1he extent that it has become
prabable thut future taxable profits will allow the deferred 1ax asset (o be recovered,

Delerred tax assets and linbilities are measured ® the 1ax rates that are expected w apply in

the vear when the asset is realized or the liability is senled, based on wmx rales (and tax
laws) that have been enmcted or substantively enacted at the reponing date.
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d)

Deferred tax relating 1o items n:cugm?_:d outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside
surplus or deficit, Deferred tax jtems are recognized in comelation to the underlving
transaction in nel assets.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceahle right exists
to set off current 1ax assets against current income tax lisbilitics and the deferred luxes
relate 10 the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except;

F When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case. the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as pant of the expense item, &5 applicable

# When receivables and payables are stated with the amournit of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from. or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or pavables in the statement of financial position.

Investment property

Investmeni properties are measured initially at cost. including transsction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incerred if' the recognition criterin are met and excludes the
costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the cost model and are depreciated over a 30-year period.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when
the investmenl propenty is permanently withdranwn from use and no future economic
benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or
deficit in the period of de-recognition,

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is'a change in use.
Property, plant and equipment

All property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the flems. When significant parts of property. plant and equipment sre required to be
replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specilic
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed. its cost is recognized in the carrving amount of the plant and equipment as o
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognized in surplus or deficil as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in & non-
exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially messured at its
fair value.



Bomet University College

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the vear ended June 30, 2018
Depreciation for the vear has been computed as per the depreciation/amortization policy of
Mol University and posted into the Fixed Assets Register. The University depreciation
policy is that fixed assets are depreciated on a reducing balance basis al annual raes
estimated to write off the carrving values of the assets over their expected useful lives.

The annual rates are as follows:

Buildings g
Furniture, Plant and Equipment 12.5%
Moator Vehicles, Motoreyeles and Tractors 2%
Computer and Related Equipment 33.3%
Freehold land is not deprecinted. Leasehold land 15 smortized over the unexpired portion of
the lease.
f} Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidenial
to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under o finance lease are
capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present valee of the future minimum lesse payments, The Entity also
recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability
recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at
initinl recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition. lease payments are apporiioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lesse Hability so s to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance chorges are recognized as finance costs in
surplus or deficit.

An nsset held under n finance lease |8 depreciated over the useful life of the asset
Howewer, if there is no reasonable certninty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the
assel by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and bencfits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity, Operating lease pavments are
recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

gl Intangible assels

Imangible assets soquired separntely are initially recogmized at cost. The cost of intangible
assels acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value of the date of the exchange.
Following iniial recognition, intangible pssets are camied at cost less any accumulated
amontization and accumulated impairment losses. Intermally generated intangible assets.
excluding capitatized development ¢osts, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficil in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assels is assessed ds either finite or indefinite.
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b} Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project
are recopnized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

L

I'he technical feasibility of completing the asset 5o that the asset will be available for
use of sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the assel
How the asset will generate fiture economic benefits or service potential
The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried ot cost less any accumilated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amorized over the period
of expected future benefit, During the period of development. the asset is tested for
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit.

]

Financial instrumenis
Finmancial ixsels
Infvial recogmivion and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair valoe through surplus or deficit.
loans and receivables. held-to-maturity investments o available-for-sale fnancial
ussets, o8 appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial assets m
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
paymenis that are nol quoted in an sctive market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured al wmortized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective imterest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or
deficit.

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pavments and fixed
maturities are classified us held to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention
and ability 1o hold it 1w maturity, After mitial measurement, held-to-maturity
investments are measured af amortized cost using the effective interest method. less
impairment. Amonized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integeal part of the effective
interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.
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il

Tmipairiment of financial assels

The Entily assesses ot each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that o
financial asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired, A financial asset or an entity
of financial assets is deemed 1o be impaired il and only ifl there s ohjective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recoginition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated fiture cash flows of the linancial assel or the entity of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairmenmt may include the following
indicators:

#  The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
»  Defaul or delinguency in interest or principal payments
# The probability that deblors will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization

# (hzecvable data indicates a measurable decrense in estimated future cash flows
{e.g. changes in arrears or economi¢ conditions that correlste with defaults)

Filmamclal Nabhilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 gre classified as financial liabilities m
fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entiry
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial hiabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrewing

After intial recognition. interést beanng loans snd borrowings are subsequently
measured al amortized cost using the effective ntérest method, Gains and losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by aking into sccount nny discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest mte.

Inventiories

Inventory i measured a1 cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost). the ¢ost of
the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present Jocation and conditions are accounted
for, as follows:

» Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

» Finished goods and work in progréss: cost of direct moterials and labour and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. but
excluding borrowing costs

Pase 15
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After initial recogmition. inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. However. to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deploved at no
charge or for 4 nominal charge. that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and
current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs nooessary to make the sale.
exchange, or distribution,

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deploved for utilization or consumption in
the ordinary course of operations of the Entity,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has & present obligation {legal or constructive)
as o result of a past event. it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed. for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a scparate assel only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
performance net of any reimbursement.

Conetingent Habilities

The Entity does not recognize s contingent liability, but discloses detmils of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an cutflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent avsers

The Entity does not recognize & conlingent asset. but discloses details of a possible asser
whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mope
unceriain future evenis not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the
financial statements. Contingent assels are assessed continually 10 ensure thm
developments are sppropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the
asset’s value can be measured reliably. the asset and the related revenue are recognized in
the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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MNature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements, The University’s
reservies are disclosed in the statement of changes in net assets.

m) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

;:-1

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in secounting policy retrospectively, The
cffects of chenges in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical,

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its emplovees and directors. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an emtity pays fixed
contributions into a4 separate entity {(a fund), and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating 10 employee service in the current snd prior peniods. The
contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged agninst
income in the yvear in which they become pavable.

Defined benefit plans are post-emplovment benefit plans other than defined-contribution
plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit
credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum pavments or
increased future contributions on proportional basis wo all participating emplovers. The
contributions and lump sum paymenis reduce the post-employment benefit obligation,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange
on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the sistement of financial position reporting date by applving the exchange
rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors. or from the
reporting of creditors ot rates different from those at which they were imitially recorded
during the period. are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Bomrowing costs are capitalized agoinst qualifying asscis as part of property, plant and
equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the nsset is being
acguired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged 1o the statement
of financial performance.

Pase |7
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g} Related parties

)

T'he Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability 10 exert control
mdividually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity. or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the University
College Council. the College Principal and other senior managers,

Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriste accounting trestment and disclosure requirements. In
particular, where a privaie party coniributes an asset to the amangement. the Entity
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator
must provide together with the ssset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In
the case of assets other than “whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through ownership.
beneficial entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual interest in the asset at the end
of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized ar¢ measured at their fair value. To the extent
that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability,
adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and arc subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of
Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial vear. For the purposes
of these hnancial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash
imprests and advances to authorised public officers and which were not surrendered or
accounted for at the end of the financial vear,

Budget information

The original budget for FY 2017-2008 was approved by the National Assembly in July
2017, Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made 10 the approved budget
m pccordance with specific approvals from the appropriste authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
approvals in order o conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional
appropriations of Kshs. 12723873 on the 2017-2018 budgets following the approval from
the University College Council.

The entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
diselosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the noture of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the accrual basis 10 the cash basis and reclossified by
presentation 1o be on the same basis os the approved budget. A comparison of budget and
actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis 1o the approved budget. is then presented
in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis
difference. adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences
in the formats and classification schemes adopled for the presentation of the financial
statements and the approved budget.
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A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable hasis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actual as per the statement
of financial performonce has been presented under section xxx of these financial
stalements,

u) Comparative ligures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial vear have been amended or
reconfigured to canform to the required changes in presentation.

v) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact
on the financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2018,

5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity’s fnancial ststements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues. expenses, assels and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of the nsset or
liability affected in future periods. State all judgements, estimates and assumptions made: e.g.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. The Entity
based its sssumplions und estrmates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due 10 market changes or circumsiances arising bevond the control
ol the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1,140

Useful lives and residoal values

The useful lives and residunl values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potentinl finure use and value from disposal:

#  The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experis emploved by the Entity

# The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability 1o changes in technology and
Processes

#  The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployved

#  Availability of funding 1o replace the asset

¥ Changes in the market in relation 1o the asset

Paoe 19
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Provisions

Provisions weré raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle
the obligation at the reporting date. and are discounted o present value where the effect is

material.

6) TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Name of the | Amouni Amouni Aot Total grant 20a-2017
Entity recognized 1o | deferred recognised | income
seniding the | Statement of under in capital during the
grant Comprehensive | deferred fund. | vear
Income income : .
Kshs Kshy - L L
Kshs Kshs Kshs
Ministry of
Educition 1 20,800,002 - JO044.518 | 150944520 -
Tatal 120, 500,002 - S0,144,518 150,944,920 -
(The details of the reconciliation henve been included wnder appendix i and fiis
T} REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS-{Amounts in Kshs)
[ Goods and Services 201772018 [ 20062017
Tuition & Related Charges | | 5,358,820 -
8) EMPLOYEE COSTS- (Amounis in Kshs)
Particulars 20172018 20162017
Basic Salaries = 23,642,306 :
Casuals 9006, 833 -
Parl Timers 347484 -
 Giratuity & Pension contribution 3,561,325 .
Salary Arrears 1,666,482 .
House allowance 10,814,327 | .
Other personal allowance 3,353,776 | .
House to Office allowance o 3,804,121 =7
‘Passage & Leave expenses 185 900 .
Total 61,210,012 -
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9) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS- (Amounts in Kshs)

9. Remuneration of directors 2TE01R 0162007
Chairman’s Honoraria fl4, 360
Oither Allowances 10,351,211
Total 10,955,571

1) DEPRICTATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE- {Amounts in kshs)

Particulars 2017/2018 201672017
Muotor vehicles f 3,356,153
Fumniture Plant and Equipment's 1.183.919
Computers 548,780
Total 5,088,852

11) REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES- { Amounts in Kshs)

Particulars 20172018 20162017
Property. Plands & Equrpnsent’s $.293413
Wehiches - Transpon Opersiing Fapenses 10T R

| TOTAL 4 ALDBHY

12) GENERAL EXPENSES- (Amounts in Kshs)

Particulars | 201772018 | 20162017
Medical expenses LINE R
Imvelling & Accomm, exps B AYE 6

Exbermal 1 xominers G

Postal & Telegrum expenses TR
Internet Expenses R ]

Deans & Semte conim, esp | 2415300

Electricity, waler £ conseryangy - | B e L

Teaching muterials 1 R P N
Purchase of uniform & clothing J 146,688

Library Expenses { oA 500

Purchase of Stalionery I.B53.941

Advertising & Publiciey @ 150
Pavmeni of rert/rtes TATT 543
Computer Expenses 110, TiHs
Imsirance expenses RE1921

Legal Expenses F1222. 400

Cheaning Materials & Deergenss 133207 |
Imter-Liniversity Games A7T1.57H |

‘Contrict Services & Subscriptions 62233 ]
Studenis Field Trps'Courses 3205} |

Students Activities 799,467 |
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Contingert Liabilities W30
Sirdleaic Plan Ilnplurr:niu.:h'm & "-1nnlmr|ng 2044, 724
Admission Expenses I
Total | 36,128,720 |
13) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Amounis in Kshs)
Financial institution | 201772018 20016207
KCB- Payment Account N | 32398
K{B- Capital Development 20,134,556 |
k.CB-Research = |
Mational Bank- Deposit 3,871,766
Mational Bank- Pavments I 194,814
National Bank- Collections , 46, 385
Co-Operative Bank- Collections 2,192 |
Sub- total I‘J'.,Hl 1nz2 !
Grand total 37382112 |

14) RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS- (Amounts in Kshs)

Particulars 201772018 2016/2017
Current receivables )

Stsdent Debtors 1,705,400

Net Receivibles from Exchange 1,708,400

e

15) RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS- {Amounts in

kshs)
Particulars 20172018 2016/2017
Balance of Government Grants from Mol )
| University 23,614,480
16) INNENTORIES- (Amounts in Kshs)
Particulars 20172018 2016/2007
Stationaries 313,793
Cleaning Materials 53,302
Mmintenance 411,160 |
l:l-:cl-nuls ’u'l:ulc.fﬂlJ_l. = 53,000
Giames and Spors 31,077
Drugs and Equipment 113,272 |
Tatal inventories at the lower of cost and 975,604

nel realizable value
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17) TRADE AND OTHER PAYBLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS-

iAmounts in Kshs)

Particulars | 201772018 [ 20162017
Trade payables 9,633,003 | -
10% Project Retention Monies- Certno, | 107 | 18,611,603 | -
Other pavables- Contingent Liabilities 4,980,673 | -
Total 33225371 | -
18)PROVISIONS- {Amounts in Kshs)
Particulars | 20017/2018 200672017
Provision for Unlities | | X3 O
Total Provisions | 130,000
19} Studenis” Fees Prepayments, 2,542,710
21 Froperty, Plant and Equipment’s
Land s Motor Formiute Cagital In
Particilars Plant and Computers Tatal
| Dulldings | vehicler | poquipment's st
hshs hshs bushs hslhs lushs bushis
sl Goiichd Sl 2s0om0 | BA4S026 1647989 | 64026563 TITLSTH
Addibions
(W nhiathons dome) LOTS 300000 | 13174613 1,023,323 -| 1378713427 | L2274m373 |
Disposals " = B =
T ransiers adjustme
s " - - -
AUSDJune 2008 | s 300,000 | 13424613 | 9ATIS | Le47.989 | 202000000 | 1301 84395
Deprecintion nmd |
lIIEIiI'I'HHﬂ s it = -
EphAC I 3,356,143 LISSS19 | 548780 5.085,852
{1 Diimpuails = ol d
ImipeirmieEn i B I i i i
Al endl of vear - Mi [
Jume 2018 ' - | 33%6053 1,183,019 S48, THI . L048.852
| i 30 June 2018 175,300,000 | 10,068 460 BIRTAND | 1099209 | 201000008 | 1296755099
Pape 23
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21, Financial Risk Management

The University's sctivities expose it to & variety of financial risks including credit and Liquidsty risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Liniversiy's overall nsk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business eénvironment and seeks 10 minimise the
potential ndverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting accepble levels of risk, The
company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies 1o ensure that credit is only extended to
custommers with an estublished credit history.

The University's financial nsk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The Unmiversity College has exposure o credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. and
deposits with banks, as well as wrade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments.

Management assesaes the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external
assessment in accordance with mits set by the directors, The amounts presented in the statement of
financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. estimated by the University's
mianagement based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The carrving amount of financial assets recorded in the financil statements representing - the
Lniversity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without aking account of the value of any collateral
oblained is made up as follows:

Total Fully
amount performing | Fastdue  Impaired
kzhs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2015

e

Receivables from exchange transactions CLT05.400 0 1,705.400
Receivables from non-exchiange trunsactions - | -
Bank balances 27,382,112 27582112
Total | 29087512 | 29087512

The students/customers under the fully performing category are paving their debis as they continue
learning/trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables s minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the University College has recognised in the financial stitements is
considered adeguate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.
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The University has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from students’ fees
debrors.

The University College Council sets the University's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(i} Liguidity risk management

Ulimate responsibility for liquidity risk management resis with the University Couneil, who has
built an approprate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the University's
short. medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The University
manages hiquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows

The able below represents cash flows pavable by the company under non-derivitive financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The ameunts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrving balances, as the impact of discounting ts not significant,

At 30 June 2018 [ [

| Trade payables | | 4352093 | 28.873.278 | 33,225 371

| Current portion of borrowings | - | =) IR | .
Provisions = P = =

" Deferred income - 2,542,710 | - -
Emplovee benefit obligation - I - | =
Tatal i -| 6894503 | 28,873,278 | 33215371

Pave 25
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(iiiy  Market risk

The University Council has put in place an internal audit function 1o assist it in assessing the risk
faged by the University on an on-going basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
internal accounting and operational contrals.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will atfect the entity’s imcome or the value of its holding of financial
instruments. The objective of markel risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptnble parameters, while optimising the return. Owverall responsibility for
managing market risk rests with the Audit. Risk and Compliance Committee of Council.

The University's Finance Division is responsible for the development of detailed risk management
policies (subject 1o review and approval by Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee) and for the day
to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the University College exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and mersures the risk,

a) Foreign currency risk

The University has minimal transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through
purchases of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local curmency.
[nvaices denommated fn foreign currencies are paid after 30 dovs from the date of the
invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

by Imersest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the University's financial condition may be adversely
affected as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The University College interest rate risk
arises from bank deposits. This exposes the University to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate movementis on the University's
deposits.

Managemenr of imerest vine rvisk
To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest rales.
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22, RELATED PARTY BALANCES

#) Mature of related party relationships

Entitics and other parties related to the University include those parties who have ability 1o exercise
control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties
include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government aof Kenya

The Government of Kenva is the principal shareholder of the University College holding 1006 of the
Bomet University College equity interest, The Govemment of Kenya will provide full puaraniees 1o all
long-term lenders of the entity. both domestic and external. Other relared parties belsde:

il e Mational Govemment:

i) The Mimstry of Education

1L} University Council members

v Key Managemen of Bomet University College
v Moi University Management

Vil Key management:

E Transactions with related parties

'a) Granis from the Government

= —
- "

[ Grants from National Government

Cirants from County Govemmeént

150,944,520 -

Donations in kind

Total

b:I_K_E’.‘-i"-I'I]-'.I &} IEEEEIHZ Com [IEH!.EIiIII'I

150,944,520 =

Directors” emoluments

10,955,571

Compensation to key managemen

17459415 |

Total

28414986

Pave 27
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23, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pending hills

The University College has various pending bills arising out of the construction of temporary
dining hall and Kitchen in 2016 amounting 1o Kshs 4, 980,675, The claims have nol been
paid since the procurement process was not followed and therefore relevant documents or
puyment were not provided. The claims in question were a subject of Audit in Moi
University for 2016/2017 Financial Year and therefore the maiter has not been fully settled.

The Vice Chancellor of Mot University appointed an Ad-Hoe Committee in April 2018 1o
look into the issue. The detailed report from the comminee signed on 7° May 2018 was
provided for audit purposes. The Council of BUC is in the process of verifyving quantity and
value for money as well as measure actual materdals used in the Dining Hall and other
projects which were running concurrently o form a basis for final determination of the

matter,
24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital Commitments 2017-2018 (Kshs) | 2016-2017 (Kshs)
L= Cert. no. 3 to 7 Cert no. 1&2
Authorized and Contracted for-paid out | 136,597,437 | $3.283,004
1o comractor - - _~‘
|

15, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.
26. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The University College is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of
Education, Science and Technology. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya,

27, Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
28. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The University is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Education. Its ultimate parent is the
Government of Kenva



Bomet University College
Annual Reports and Financial Statemenis
For the vear ended June 30, 2018

29, Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenva Shillings (Kshs),
APPENDIX I: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Status of Projecis completion

| NTRIRTA )] | 134 98T 449 | [E o TR iF | | Ok
Hsock,

Library.

A uilel prirpoe
Haill and 2
| Hostels, | ] |

.-].:I \ Paoe 249
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APPENDIX II: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Bomet University College
Break down of Transfers lrom the Siate Depariment of University Eduutinn
FINANCIAL YEAR
201772018
A. Recurrent Grants |
Maonth Bank Statemenl [hh': ' kshs, Financial Year
July, 17 2017 £.400,000 200172018
Aug-17 01T B.400.000 "
Sep-17 V32017 8,400,000 Y
Oet-17 132007 B, 400, D0 i
Mov-17 12712017 £, 400,000 =
July 201 T-Noy 2017 [ 2072017 8,333333 | .
Dee-17 172272018 1.666,667 | s
Dec-17 17272018 §,400,000 | n
Jan-18 2782018 1666667 | .
Jan-18 | 22018 8.400,000 o
Feb=18 31372018 I.666, 667 o
Feb-18 3132018 £.400,000 | a
Mar-18 4/6/2018 B4, 000 | &
Mar-18 162018 1,666,667 | =
Apr-18 52/2018 8,400,000 | "
Apr-18 5/2/2018 1666667 =
Mayv-18 112008 8,400,000 i
Mav-18 & 1120018 | 666667 | L
Jun-18 IR2018 8,400,000 | -
Jun=18 282018 | H66.667 | a
TOTAL 120,800,003 |
I
| B. Development Grants L
Muonih Bank Statement Date | Kshs, Financial Yeur
Jul-17 Ha2007 A0, 144,518 20172018
TOTAL 30144518

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Head of Finance

Bomet University College —
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